Re-Stated BYLAWS OF MURRAY LANE PROPERTIES COMMON FACILITIES ASSOCIATION, INC. Page	e 1
Re-Stated BYLAWS OF MURRAY LANE PROPERTIES COMMON FACILITIES ASSOCIATION, INC.	
Modified February, 2015	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS		Page Number
1.01. Association.		3
1.02. Constituent Association.		3
1.03. Constituent Association Percent Interes	St .	3
1.04. Declarations.		3
1.05. Directors.		3
1.06. Highland View.		3
1.07. Members.		3
1.09. Property.		4
1.10. Recreational Facilities.		4
1.11. Waterford.		4
ARTICLE 2: OFFICES		
2.01. Registered Office.		4
		·
ARTICLE 3: MEMBERS		
3.01. Membership.		4
3.01. Membership.		7
ARTICLE 4: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS		
		4
4.01. Place of Meetings.		4
4.02. Annual Meeting.		4
4.03. Special Meeting.		4
4.04. Notice.		4
4.05. Quorum		5
4.06. Majority Vote; Withdrawal of Quorum.		5
4.07. Method of Voting; Proxies.		5
_		
4.08. Cumulative Voting Denied.		5
ARTICLE 5: DIRECTORS		
5.01. Management.		5
•		
5.02. Number; Qualifications; Election; Term		5
5.03. Removal; Change in Number; Vacancie	∋ S.	5
5.04. Place of Meetings.		6
5.05. Annual Meetings.		6
5.06. Regular Meetings.		6
5.07. Special Meetings.		6
5.08. Quorum.		
		6
5.09. Other Committees.		6
5.10. Procedure.		6
5.11. Managing Agents.		6
ARTICLE 6: NOTICES		
6.01. Method.		6
6.02. Waiver.		6
ARTICLE 7: OFFICERS		
7.01. Number; Titles.		7
7.02. Other Officers.		7
7.03. Salaries.		7
7.04. Term of Office; Removal.		7
		•

ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE 8.01. Coverages and Required Provisions. 8.02. Responsibilities of Insurance Trustee.	7 8
ARTICLE 9: ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS 9.01. Enforcement Actions	9
ARTICLE 10: RECONSTRUCTION OR REPAIR 10.01. Vote of Member. 10.02. Plan for Reconstruction. 10.03. Costs of Repair. 10.04. Payment.	9 9 9 10
ARTICLE 11: ASSESSMENTS 11.01. Annual and Special Assessments. 11.02. Allocation and Payment of Assessments. 11.03. Collection of Assessments. 11.04. No Exemptions. 11.05. Status Certification.	10 10 10 10
ARTICLE 12: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 12.01. Reserves. 12.02. Checks. 12.03. Fiscal Year. 12.04. Indemnification. 12.05. Inconsistencies. 12.06. Amendment of Bylaws. 12.07. Rules and Regulations. 12.08. Table of Contents; Headings.	11 11 11 11 11 11 11

ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS

- 1.01. Association. "Association" shall mean and refer to the Murray Lane Properties Common Facilities Association, Inc., a Tennessee not-for-profit corporation, created to administer the Property and the Recreational Facilities located thereon and being sometimes referred to as the "Umbrella Association".
- 1.02. Constituent Association. "Constituent Association" means the certain residential developments created on real property located Sites or Lots included in the Waterford and Highland View Developments.
- 1.03. Constituent Association Percentage Interest. "Constituent Association Percentage Interest" shall mean and refer to the ratio that the number of sites or lots in a given Constituent Association that are entitled to participate or to use the Recreational Facilities bears to the total of such sites or lots entitled to such use.
- 1.04. Declarations. "Declarations" means those certain declarations of covenants, conditions and restrictions, which are or shall be filed for record in the Register's Office for Williamson County, Tennessee, and which documents shall create the developments constituting the Constituent Associations.
- 1.05. Directors. "Directors" shall mean and refer to the Board of Directors of the Association, each of which shall either be the president or a designated representative of the Constituent Associations.
- 1.06. Highland View. "Highland View" means that certain open space residential development named Highland View, created by that Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Highland View of record in Book page, Register's Office for Williamson County, Tennessee.

- 1.07. Members. "Members" means the Owners of any Site or Lot as defined in any of the Declarations, which are entitled pursuant to the terms of said Declarations to the use and benefit of the Recreational Facilities to be operated by the Association.
- 1.08. Property. "Property" means and refers to all of that real property that is or shall be owned by the Association and on which the Association intends to operate the Recreational Facilities. As developed this is the Swimming pool, Decking around the pool, Walls and fences protecting the pool (both inside and outside of both), Pool Pavilion, Rest rooms, Pool equipment in and under the Pavilion, walk ways up to the pavilion, interior and exterior light for pool, pavilion, and parking lot (as defined by the concrete curb). For further definition see R.O.W.C Plat Book 14, Page 46.
- 1.09. Recreational Facilities. "Recreational Facilities" shall mean and refer to the pool, and pavilion.
- 1.10. Waterford. "Waterford" means that certain residential development known as Waterford, created pursuant to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of record in Book 703, page 183, Register's Office for Williamson County, Tennessee, containing twenty-eight (28) sites. Pursuant to Section 4.2(a) of the Waterford Declaration, the number of Sites in Waterford that may participate in the Umbrella Association shall be determined following the initial conveyance of each site by the Developer.

ARTICLE 2: OFFICES

2.01. Registered Office. The registered office of the corporation shall be at Westwood Management Company, 256 Seaboard Lane, # C101 Franklin, Tennessee 37067, and the name of the registered agent of the corporation is Hoil Crowe.

ARTICLE 3: MEMBERS

3.01. Membership. Each Owner as defined in any of the Declarations shall be a Member of the corporation and no other person or entity shall automatically be entitled to membership and membership privileges. No Member shall be required to pay any consideration whatsoever solely for his membership in the corporation.

ARTICLE 4: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

- 4.01. Place of Meetings. Meetings of the Members of the corporation may be held at a place to be determined by the Board of Directors within Williamson County, Tennessee.
- 4.02. Annual Meeting. Unless otherwise specified in a written notice from the Board of Directors, an annual meeting of the Members of the corporation shall be held each year during the second month following the close of the fiscal year at which time the Members shall transact such business as may properly be brought before the meeting.
- 4.03. Special Meeting. Special meetings of the Members, for any purpose or purposes, may be called by the president, the Board of Directors, or by Members having not less than five (5%) percent of the total percentage values of those votes entitled to be cast at such meeting. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the objects stated in the notice of such meeting.
- 4.04. Notice. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting, either personally, or by mail (delivered by postal service or electronically, to addresses on file with the corporation), by or at the direction of the president, the secretary, or the officer or person calling the meeting, to each Member of the corporation entitled to vote at such meeting.

- 4.05. Quorum. The presence in person or by proxy of more than twenty-five (25%) percent of the percentage values of those votes entitled to be cast at a meeting of the Members shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Members for the transaction of business. If, however, the Members entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall have the power to adjourn the meet.ing from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a Quorum shall be present or represented. At such adjourned meeting at which a Quorum shall be present or represented any business may be transacted at which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified.
- 4.06. Majority Vote; Withdrawal of Quorum. When a Quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the holders of more than fifty per cent (50%) of the percentage values of those votes entitled to be cast of Members Qualified to vote and present in person or by proxy, shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the question is one upon which by express provision of the Charter of the corporation or these Bylaws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question. The Members present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members from the meeting to leave less than a quorum.
- 4.07. Method of Voting; Proxies. Each Member shall be entitled to a vote the value of which is the ratio that each Lot owned by such Member in any Constituent Association bears to the total of all participating Lots in all Constituent Associations. No Member shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of the corporation until such Member has presented evidence of ownership of a Lot in a Constituent Association to the Board of Directors. The vote of each Member may only be cast by such Member or by a proxy given by such Member to his duly authorized representative bearing a date not more than eleven months prior to such meeting. Such proxy shall be filed with the secretary of the corporation prior to or at the time of the meeting. If title to a Lot shall be in the name of two or more persons as Owners, all of such persons shall be Members of the corporation and are referred to herein as "Joint Owners". Anyone of such Joint Owners may vote at any meeting of the Members of the corporation and such vote shall be binding upon such other Joint Owners who are not present at such meeting until written notice to the contrary has been received by the Board of Directors in which case the unanimous vote of all such Joint Owners (in person or by proxy) shall be required to cast their vote as Members. If two or more of such Joint Owners are present at any meeting, their unanimous action shall also be present at any meeting, their unanimous action shall also be required to cast their vote as Members of the corporation.
- 4.08. Cumulative Voting Denied. Cumulative voting for Directors shall not be permitted.

ARTICLE 5: DIRECTORS

- 5.01. Management. The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors who may exercise all such powers of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute, the Charter, or these Bylaws, directed or required to be exercised or done by the Members.
- 5.02. Number; Qualifications; Election; Term. The Board of Directors shall be the president or a designated representative of each of the Constituent Associations (Waterford and Highland View). The Members of the Board of Directors shall serve until their successors are either elected or appointed. Directors shall serve without compensation.
- 5.03. Removal; Change in Number; Vacancies. Any Director may be removed either for or without cause, at any special meeting of the Owners of the Constituent Association which that Director represents in accordance with the governing documents of such Constituent Association. If any vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors, caused by death, resignation, retirement, disqualification or removal from office of any Director or otherwise, a successor or successors may be designated by the Owners in such Constituent Association represented by such Director. In the event a Constituent Association fails to designate a representative to serve as a Director of the corporation, the Board of Directors shall be entitled to appoint a Director to serve until such time as such Constituent Association gives notice of its new representative.
- 5.04. Place of Meetings. The Directors of the corporation shall hold their meetings, both regular and special within Williamson County, Tennessee.

Effective as of February 2015

- 5.05. Annual Meeting. Unless otherwise specified in a written notice from the Board of Directors, an annual meeting of the Members of the corporation shall be held each year during the second month following the close of the fiscal year at which time the Members shall transact such business as may properly be brought before the meeting. Provided, however, that such annual meeting may not be held earlier than the specified date if the result of the rescheduling would be to hold the annual meeting prior to the date of the annual meeting of either Constituent Association.
- 5.06. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and place as shall from time to time be determined by the Board.
- 5.07. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the president on a three (3) days notice to each Director, either personally or by mail (delivered by postal service or electronically, to addresses on file with the corporation). Special meetings shall be called by the president or secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of two (2) Directors. Except as may be otherwise expressly provided by statute, the Charter or these Bylaws, neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any special meeting need be specified in a notice or waiver of notice.
- 5.08. Quorum and voting. At all meetings of the Board of Directors the presence of both Directors shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of Directors, the Directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. Presidents shall be allocated votes based on the number of households in their respective constituencies.
- 5.9. Other Committees. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the affairs of the corporation may be designated and appointed by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors at a meeting at which a quorum is present, or by the president thereunto authorized by a like resolution of the Board of Directors. Membership on such committees may, but need not be, limited to Directors or Members of the corporation.
- 5.10. Procedure. All committees shall keep regular minutes of their proceedings and shall report the same to the Board when required.
- 5.11. Managing Agents. The Board of Directors may employ for the corporation a management agent at a compensation established by the Board of Directors and such management agent shall perform such duties and services with respect to the Recreational Facilities and affairs of the Association as the Board of Directors shall authorize, and the Board of Directors may delegate to such management agent such duties with respect to management, repair and maintenance of the Recreational Facilities and other common areas which are not by statute, the Charter or these Bylaws, required to be performed by or have the approval of the Board of Directors or the Members of the corporation.

ARTICLE 6: NOTICES

- 6.01. Method. Whenever notice is required to be given to any Director or Member, and no provision is made as to how such notice shall be given, it shall not be construed to mean personal notice, but any such notice may be given in writing, by Electronic mail, by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such Director or Member at such address as appears on the records of the corporation. Any notice required or permitted to be given by mail shall be deemed to be given at the time when the same shall be thus deposited in the United States mails as aforesaid.
- 6.02. Waiver. Whenever any notice is required to be given to any Member or Director of the corporation a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated in such notice, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE 7: OFFICERS

- 7.01. Number; Titles. The Directors of the corporation shall be the elected Presidents or their designated representatives for the Constituent Associations (Waterford and Highland View). The other members of the elected Highland View Home Owners Association shall participate as non-voting members of the Board of Directors.
- 7.02. Other Officers. The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers and agents as it shall deem necessary, who shall be appointed for such terms and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the Board.
- 7.03. Salaries. The salaries of all officers of the corporation, if any, shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.
- 7.04. Term of Office; Removal. Each Director of the corporation shall hold office until the annual meeting of the Board of Directors next following his election and thereafter until his successor is chosen and qualified in his stead or until his death or until his resignation or removal from office. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the whole Board of Directors, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. If the office of any officer become vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be filled by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE

- 8.01. Coverages and Required Provisions. The Association shall maintain the following insurance coverage:
 - (a) Fire and extended coverage insurance covering all improvements and all personal property, equipment, fixtures and supplies owned by the Association. The face amount of such policy or policies shall not be .less than one hundred percent (100%) of the current replacement cost of the property required to be covered by this Section. Such policy shall contain an agreed amount and an inflation guard endorsement, if such can be reasonably obtained, and also construction code endorsements, such as demolition costs endorsement, contingent liability from operation of building laws endorsement and increased cost of construction endorsement. Such policy shall also contain steam boiler and machinery coverage endorsements, if applicable. The insurance policies so purchased shall be purchased by the Association for the use and benefit of individual Members and their mortgagees.

The Association shall issue certificates of insurance to each Member showing and describing the insurance coverage for the interest of each Member, and shall develop procedures for the issuance, upon request, of a copy of the policy together with standard mortgagee endorsement clauses to the mortgagees of Members. To the extent reasonably available, such policy shall waive rights of subrogation against Members, the Association, and all agents of the Association. The insurance policies purchased by the Association shall also provide, to the extent reasonably available, that the insurance will not be prejudiced by any acts or omissions of Members that are not under the control of the Association, and that such policies will be primary even if the Member has other insurance that covers the same loss. The insurance policy shall also provide that any applicable insurance trust agreement will be recognized.

- (b) Public liability insurance shall be secured in such amounts, with such coverage, as shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Association, but such policy shall be a policy in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, including but not limited to:.
 - (i) Bodily injury and property damage resulting from the operation, maintenance or use of the common areas or recreational facilities.
 - (ii) Liability resulting from employment contracts which the Association is a party, and
 - (iii) Hired automobile and non-hired automobiles, with cross liability endorsement to cover liabilities of the Members as a group to individual Members.
- (c) Flood insurance for all buildings or other improvements, constituting insurable property and located within designated flood hazard area in an amount equal to a minimum of the maximum coverage available now or hereafter under the National Flood Insurance Program.

- (d) Workmans Compensation Insurance as required by law;
- (e) Directors and officers liability insurance, if available at reasonable cost, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board. It is presumptively agreed that coverage in the amount of \$250,000 per occurrence would be considered a reasonable amount of such coverage at the time of adoption of the Bylaws.
- (f) Fidelity bonds on a blanket basis for anyone who either handles or is responsible for funds held or administered by the Association, whether or not he or she receives compensation for services. The Association shall be named as the obligee. The fidelity bond shall cover the maximum funds that will be held in the custody of the Association or its management agent at any time while the bond is in force and shall also cover at least the sum of one-quarter of the Association's Annual Budget plus the reserve funds of the Association. Any management agent that handles funds for the Association shall be covered by its own fidelity bond with the same coverages as are required of the Association as set forth herein.
- (g) Such additional insurance and coverages and fidelity bonds as may be required by FHA, FNMA, FHLMC, or such other entity as may hold a mortgage on any site or lot in any of the Constituent Associations.
- (h) Such other insurance as the Board of Directors shall determine from time to time to be desirable and in the best interest of the Members.
- (i) All policies of insurance shall show the name insured, in form and substance, similar to the following: "Murray Lane Properties Common Facilities Association, Inc., for the use and benefit of the individual Members," or such named insured as may be determined by the Association from time to time. Such policy shall contain, or have issued in connection therewith, a loss payable clause which shall provide that any proceeds due shall be paid to the insurance trustee, as hereinafter defined, as trustee for each Member and the holder of each site mortgage, subject to the provisions of the Declaration for the Constituent Association for the use and benefit of the mortgagees of individual sites, if any, and Members, as their interest may appear. All policies, including fidelity bonds, must provide at least ten days' prior written notice to the Association and to each holder, insurer, guarantor and servicer of a first mortgage on a Site before the insurer can cancel or substantially modify said policy. All policies shall also contain a standard mortgagee clause and, as to mortgages on sites held by FNMA, or FHLMC, or similar financing entity, must name such entity or the servicer for the mortgages. When a servicer is named as the mortgagee, its name should be followed by the phrase, "its successors and assigns".
- (j) Premiums upon insurance policies and fidelity bonds purchased by the Association shall be paid by the Association and the cost thereof shall be considered part of the Budget for the Association and shall be reflected in the assessments levied against each Member.
- (k) The Association is hereby irrevocably appointed agent for each Member to purchase insurance as described and set forth in the foregoing Sections (a) through (j) above and to adjust all claims arising under insurance pollcies purchased by the Association.
- 8.02. Responsibilities of Insurance Trustee.
 - (a) All insurance policies purchased by the Association shall provide that proceeds covering property losses shall be paid to any bank in Tennessee which is selected by the Association as a Trustee, which bank is herein referred to as the Insurance Trustee. The Insurance Trustee shall not be liable for payment of premiums, for the renewal or the sufficiency of policies, or for the failure to collect any insurance proceeds.
 - (b) The duty of the Insurance Trustee shall be to receive such proceeds as are paid, and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the mortgagees of individual Sites, if any, and Members as their interests may appear. An undivided share of such proceeds on account of damage to Common Areas or Recreational Facilities shall be allocated to the Members according to their ownership interest. In the event a mortgagee endorsement has been issued as to a site owned by a Member, the share of the Member shall be held in trust for the named mortgagees and the Member as their interests may appear.

- (c) Expenses and fees of the Insurance Trustee shall be paid by the Association and costs thereof included in the Budget of the ·Association.
- (d) Proceeds of insurance policies received by the Insurance Trustee shall be distributed as follows:
 - (i) If the damage for which the proceeds are paid is to be repaired or reconstructed, the proceeds shall be expended as provided in Article 10. Any proceeds remaining after payment of repair or reconstruction expenses shall be distributed to the beneficial owners, with remittances to Members and mortgagees of individual Sites being payable jointly to them. This is a covenant for the benefit of any mortgagee of an individual Site and may be enforced by such mortgagee.
 - (ii) If it is determined, as provided in Article 10, that the damage for which the proceeds are paid shall not be reconstructed or repaired, the proceeds shall be distributed to the mortgagees of individual Sites, if any, and Members as their interests may appear. This is a covenant for the benefit of any mortgagee and may be enforced by such mortgagee.
 - (iii) In making distributions to Members and mortgagees, the Insurance Trustee shall rely upon a certificate executed (i) by the Association as to the names of the Members, and (ii) by each of the mortgagees as to their respective shares of the distribution.

ARTICLE 9: ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS

9.01. The Association shall have the right to prosecute any proceedings at law or in equity against any person or persons violating any of the provisions of these Bylaws, the Charter of the Association or any rules and regulations as may be promulgated from time to time by the Board of Directors and to obtain relief by way of injunction, money damages, or both and shall be entitled to the costs thereof, including reasonable attorney's fees. In the event that any provision of these Bylaws shall be held invalid by judgment or court order, it shall not be deemed to affect any of the other provisions herein, which shall continue and remain in full force and effect. In the event that any provision hereof shall be declared void by a court of competent jurisdiction by reason of the period of time for which the same shall be effective, then the term of such provisions shall be reduced by the maximum period of time allowed by the laws of the State of Tennessee.

ARTICLE 10: RECONSTRUCTION OR REPAIR

10.01. Vote of Member. If not more than two-thirds (2/3) of the Recreational Facilities shall be damaged by fire or any other disaster, then the Recreational Facilities shall be rebuilt or repaired. If such damage shall affect more than two-thirds (2/3) of the Recreational Facilities, then reconstruction shall not be compulsory without the consent of Directors entitled to vote eighty percent (80%) of the total Constituent Association Percentage Interest. The determination of the percentage of destruction of, the Condominium Project shall be by a vote of the Directors.

- 10.02. Plan for Reconstruction. Any reconstruction or repair of the Recreational Facilities shall be substantially in accordance with the original plans and specifications for the Recreational Facilities unless the Directors shall unanimously decide otherwise.
- 10.03. Costs of Repair. As soon as possible after the occurrence of a casualty which causes damage to any part of the Property for which the Association has insurance coverage (hereinafter referred to as the "Casualty"), the Association shall obtain reliable and detailed cost estimates of the restoration and repair to such property.
- 10.04. Payment. All insurance proceeds available to the Association with respect to the Casualty shall first be applied to the payment of the actual repair and restoration to such Property. However, if such insurance proceeds are not sufficient to cover such estimated costs, then an assessment shall be made against the Members by the Association on a pro rata basis to cover any shortfall between available insurance proceeds and the cost to repair or reconstruct.

ARTICLE 11: ASSESSMENTS

11.01. Annual and Special Assessments.

- (a) The Directors shall establish an annual budget in advance for each fiscal year of the Association of all Association expenses for the forthcoming year which may be required for the proper operation, management and maintenance of the Recreational Facilities, including a reasonable allowance for contingencies and reserves. The assessment of each Member for a pro rata share of the Association expenses for such year shall be established by the adoption of such annual budget by the Directors. Copies of such budget shall be delivered to each Member, although the delivery of a copy of the budget to each Member shall not affect the liability of any Member for any existing or future assessments. Should the Directors at any time determine, in their sole discretion, that the assessments levied are insufficient to pay such expenses in any fiscal year, the Directors may at any time and from time to time levy such additional assessments as they shall deem necessary for such purpose.
 - (b) Special assessments may be made by the Directors at any time and from time to time to meet other requirements of the Association including, but not limited to, capital improvements; provided, however, that any such special assessment shall not be levied without the prior approval of at least seventy-five (75%) of the total percentage of ownership of all of the Members.
- 11.02. Allocation and Payment of Assessments. All assessments required to be levied against the Members of Constituent Association to cover Association expenses shall be established by dividing the total assessment by the total number Members of the Constituent Associations. Assessments shall be due and payable upon notice by the Umbrella Association to the affected Constituent Association. The payment of an assessment shall be in default if such assessment, or any part thereof, is not paid to the Association in full on the due date for such payment, and shall bear interest at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum or the maximum rate allowable by law, whichever is less, commencing from and after such assessment is thirty (30) days past due until paid in full. Each Member (whether one or more persons) shall be and remain personally liable for the payment of all assessments which may be levied against such Member by the Umbrella Association in accordance with these Bylaws, and any unpaid assessments with accrued interest thereon may be collected in accordance with Section 11.03 hereof.
- 11.03. Collection of Assessments. The Association may enforce collection of delinquent assessments by suit at law for a money judgment, and the expenses incurred in collecting unpaid assessments including interest, costs and attorneys' fees, shall be chargeable to the Member or Constituent Association in default. A Member in default of his obligations to the Association or other Members as set forth herein shall not be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Association so long as such default is in existence nor shall such Member be entitled to use the Recreational Facilities.
- 11.04. No Exemptions. No Member may exempt himself from liability for his contribution toward the expenses of the Association by waiver of the use or enjoyment of any of the Recreational Facilities or by the abandonment or sale of his Site or Lot in a Constituent Association.
- 11.05. Status Certification. Upon written request by any prospective mortgagee or purchaser of a Site or Lot, the Association shall certify to such person whether any assessments have been made as to such Site or Lot that remain unpaid in the amount thereof. If such information is relied upon by a prospective mortgage or purchaser to its detriment, it shall be combining upon the Association even though such information may later be discovered to have been inaccurate.

ARTICLE 12: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 12.01. Reserves. There will be created and maintained by the Board of Directors such reserves as the Directors, in their discretion, think proper to provide for contingencies, or to repair or maintain any portion of the Recreational Facilities, or for such other purposes as the Directors shall think beneficial to the corporation, or to minimize the potential need of special assessments.
- 12.02. Checks. All checks or demands for money and notes of the corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate.

Effective as of February 2015

12.03. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be the calendar year unless another fiscal year is fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

12.04. Indemnification. The corporation shall indemnify any Director, officer, or employee, or former Director, officer, or employee of the corporation, against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by him, and any amount paid in satisfaction of judgments, in connection with any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil or criminal in nature, in which he is made a party by reason of being or having been such a Director, officer, or employee (whether or not a Director, officer or employee at the time such costs or expenses are incurred by or imposed upon him) except in relation to matters as to which he shall be adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of duty. The corporation may also reimburse to any Directors, officer or employee the reasonable costs of settlement of any such action, suit or proceedings, if it shall be found by a majority of a committee of the Directors not involved in the matter of controversy, whether or not a quorum, that it was to the interests of the corporation that such settlement be made and that such Director, officer or employee was not guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct. Such rights of indemnification and reimbursement shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such Director, officer, or employee may be entitled by law or under bylaw, agreement, vote of Members or otherwise.

12.05. Inconsistencies. In the event these Bylaws shall be inconsistent with the Charter, then the Charter shall be controlling.

12.06. Amendment of Bylaws. These bylaws may not be altered, amended or repealed except by the affirmative vote of more than fifty (50) per cent of the percentage values of those votes entitled to be cast by Members qualified to vote.

12.07. Rules and Regulations. The Board of Directors shall be entitled to promulgate Rules and Regulations from time to time governing the use and enjoyment of the Recreational Facilities and any other Property of the Association.

12.08. Table of Contents; Headings. The table of contents and headings used in these bylaws have been inserted for administrative convenience only and do not constitute matter to be construed in interpretation.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing Bylaws were adopted by the Incorporator of Murray Lane Properties Common Facilities Association, Inc. on the 1st day of February, 2015.

President, Highland View Home Owners Association

President, Waterford Home Owners Association